ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 9, 2015
3:31 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator M ke Dunl eavy, Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senator Cathy G essel

Senator Gary Stevens

Senat or Berta Gardner

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 89

"An Act relating to a parent's right to direct the education of
a child,; and relating to questionnaires admnistered in
school s. "

- MOVED CSSB 89(EDC) QUT OF COW TTEE
SENATE BILL NO 37
"An Act relating to sexual abuse and sexual assault awareness
and prevention efforts in public schools."
- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 89

SHORT TITLE: PARENT Rl GHTS: EDUCATI O\, SCHOOL ABSENCE
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DUNLEAVY

03/ 25/ 15 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
03/ 25/ 15 (S) EDC, STA

03/ 31/ 15 (S) EDC AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 31/ 15 (S Schedul ed but Not Heard

04/ 02/ 15 (S) EDC AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 02/ 15 (S) Heard & Hel d

04/ 02/ 15 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

04/ 07/ 15 (S) EDC AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 07/ 15 (S) Heard & Hel d

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- April 9, 2015



04/ 07/ 15 (S) M NUTE( EDC)
04/ 09/ 15 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 09/ 15 (S) EDC AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

BETHANY MARCUM St af f

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Expl ai ned Anendnent 3 on behalf
sponsor.

CAYLEA COLLUM St udent

Juneau Dougl as Hi gh School

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 89.

| ZABELLA POVERS, St udent

Uni versity of Al aska- Sout heast

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 89.

CALVI N ZUELOW St udent

Juneau Dougl as Hi gh School

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 89.

LAURA POVNERS, representing herself
Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 89.

COURTNEY POVERS, representing herself
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 89.

ANN YOUNG, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 89.

SUE SCHRADER, representing herself
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 89.

DEANNA HOBBS, representing herself
Juneau, Al aska

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2- Apri

of the

9, 2015



PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

PAULA TERREL, representing herself
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

ESTHER SM TH, representing herself
Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

JULI E STRCEMER, representing herself
Sitka, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of

LYNN ESCOLA, representing herself

Pet er sburg, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in opposi
anmended.

KAI TLYN ROBERTS, representing herself
Eagl e River, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

AMM E TREMBLAY, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

JENNI FER WOCLY, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

JUDY M LLER, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

JOHN LEVY, representing hinself

Board Member, Pl anned Parent hood

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

THEU A PETERSON, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition

M CHELLE DAM., Curri cul um Coor di nat or

Fai rbanks North Star Borough School District
Fai r banks, Al aska

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3-

to SB 89.

to SB 89.

to SB 89.

SB 89.

tion to

to

to

to

to

to

to

SB

SB 89.

SB 89.

SB 89.

SB 89.

SB 89.

SB 89.

Apri

89, as

9, 2015



PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 89.

LI NDA FI LE, representing herself
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 89.

PATSY BEHNER, representing herself
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 89.

CHANDA FI LE, representing herself
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 89.

PETE HOEPFNER, Cordova School Board

Cordova School District

Cordova, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 89.

KATE FI NN, representing herself
Hormer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 89.

AMY BCOLLENBACH, representing herself
Hormer, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 89.

G NA CARPENTER, representing herself
Di|I'lingham Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 89.

JOAN DI AMOND, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 89.

ROBIN SM TH, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 89.

JULIE BAIRD, representing herself
Wasill a, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 89.

LI SA EGAN LACGERQUI ST, representing hersel f

Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 89.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- April 9, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE LAURA REI NBOLD

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 89.

M KE HANLEY, Conmi ssi oner

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 89.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:31:44 PM

CHAIR MKE DUNLEAVY <called the Senate Education Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:31 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Huggins, Gessel, Gardner, and Chair
Dunl eavy. Senator Stevens arrived shortly thereafter. He noted
two bills were before the comm ttee.

SB 89- PARENT RI GHTS: EDUCATI ON;, SCHOOL ABSENCE

3:32:29 PM

CHAlI R DUNLEAVY announced the consideration of SB 89. He said a
commttee substitute (CS) was adopted, two anendnents were
adopted on 4/2/15 and public testinony is open. He asked if
there were further amendnents for the commttee to consider.

3:33: 03 PM
SENATOR HUGGE NS noved to adopt Amendnent 3, |abeled 29-
LSO735\ P. 6.

AMENDVENT 3

Page 1, line 10:
Del ete "departnment”
| nsert "state"

Page 2, line 10:
Del ete "departnent”
| nsert "state"

Page 2, line 12, follow ng "standard,"
| nsert "or

Page 2, lines 12 - 13:
Delete ", or standards-based assessnent or test
required by the departnent™

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- April 9, 2015



Page 2, line 16:
Del ete "departnent”
| nsert "state"

Page 2, line 21:
Del ete "departnment”
| nsert "state"

Page 2, line 23:
Del ete "departnment”
| nsert "state"

CHAI R DUNLEAVY obj ected for discussion.

BETHANY MARCUM Staff, Senator M ke Dunleavy, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, explained Anendnment 3 on behal f of the sponsor.

Page 2, lines 12 and 13: renove the words "or
st andar ds- based assessnent or test required by the
departnment” to retain the validity of assessnents.

Throughout the CS, the |anguage used is "standards-
based assessnment or test required by the departnent.”
Thi s anmendnent would change the word "departnent” and
would be replaced with the work "state" in all five
i nstances.

CHAIR DUNLEAVY noted the changes were as a result of a
di scussion with Legislative Legal.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY renoved his objection. There being no further
obj ection, Anendnent 3 was adopt ed.

3:35:04 PM
At ease

3:35:40 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY said he intends to nove the bill out of commttee
t oday. He opened public testinony.

3:36: 23 PM

CAYLEA COLLUM  Student, Juneau Douglas H gh School (JDHS)
testified in opposition to SB 89. She said she is a nenber of
Teen Council at JDHS, a program that provides youth with the
opportunity to teach peers about things such as ways to keep
one's sexuality healthy and other information about grow ng up.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- April 9, 2015



She stated that SB 89 will take away her right to a conplete and
t horough education. She reported that every student she talked
to was in favor of sex education. She concluded that they want
to receive a good education, be well inforned, and fix sonme of
the issues they are facing.

3:38: 30 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if Ms. Collum believes the bill would stop
sex education in schools.

M5. COLLUM sai d yes.

3:39: 02 PM

| ZABELLA POVERS, St udent , University  of Al aska- Sout heast
testified in opposition to SB 89. She said she is a
representative of student governnent at UAS. She opined that
youth should have access to conprehensive sex education. She
shared statistics about the high rates of STDs and rape in
Al aska. She said sex education is inportant to all youth.

3:40: 08 PM

CALVI N ZUELOW Student, Juneau Douglas H gh School, testified in
opposition to SB 89. He said he respects the intent of the bil
to have parental control of their student's education, but the
bill is damaging to the quality of sex education students
receive in school. As a menber of the Teen Council, he said he
wants to ensure that schools have quality sex education, and
share that information with his peers. He noted the positive
results toward lowering statistics due to sex education, which
the bill would not allow due to Teen Council's connection to
Pl anned Par ent hood.

SENATOR GARDNER asked for informati on about Teen Council.

MR. ZUELOW explained that Teen Council is by invitation to
cl assroons at the request of teachers on a subject requested by
t he teacher, such as val ues.

CHAIR DUNLEAVY asked if +the Teen Council uses a Planned
Par ent hood curri cul um

MR, ZUELOW sai d yes.
3:42: 34 PM
LAURA POVNERS, representing herself, testified in opposition to

SB 89. She shared statistics about STD s, rape, and sexual abuse
in Alaska. She demanded that |awmakers stand up for wonen,

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- April 9, 2015



children and Al askans by supporting nedically accurate sex
education in school s.

CORBI N PONERS, representing herself, testified in opposition to
SB 89. She shared statistics about STD s, rape, and sexual abuse
in Alaska. She demanded that |awrakers stand up for wonen,
children and Al askans by supporting nedically accurate sex
education in school s.

[ M5. LAURA POAERS AND MS. CORBIN POAERS testified together.]

ANN YOUNG representing herself, testified in opposition to SB
89. The bill limts the rights of children to get the know edge
they need to make decisions in their lives. She voiced concern
about the lack of safety for wonen in Al aska. She comented on
the repercussions of teen pregnancy. She said people have a
right to pursue happi ness and need information to do so.

3:46: 03 PM

SUE SCHRADER, representing herself, testified in opposition to
SB 89. She shared statistics of the high anmpbunt of STI's in
Al aska. She opined that the facts are irrelevant when talking to
politicians. She said SB 89 substanti ates that conment.

3:47:40 PM

DEANNA HOBBS, representing herself, testified in opposition to
SB 89. She shared her experience as a peer educator in Teen
Council and the need to communicate information about sex
education to teens. She said she has seen the positive inpacts
from such education

SENATOR GARDNER asked if her peers have accurate information and
where they get it.

M5. HOBBS said a lot of teens go to websites for information.
She did not think that health classes taught very nuch about
sexuality. Also, sone teens obtain information from their
parents, but nost just listen to their friends or find
information on the internet.

3:50: 22 PM

SENATOR HUGGE NS tal ked about teen suicide due to alcohol and
dr ugs.

M5. HOBBS asked for clarification of his question.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked how they relate to sexual abuse and STD s.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- April 9, 2015



M5. HOBBS said drugs and al cohol do relate to these issues.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked how Juneau statistics conpare to other
places in the state.

MS. HOBBS said she is not aware of that.

3:53: 04 PM

PAULA TERREL, representing herself, testified in opposition to
SB 89. She commented on limting testinony to one minute on such
an inportant topic. She said she finds the bill to be
prohibitive; it puts a clanp on school districts. She naintained
that schools are open to parents who wish their children to opt
out of prograns. She read Fairbanks' opt out policy and said
that is the way it should be, not to have to have perm ssion
before they participate.

In response to a question from Senator Gardner regarding the
accuracy of Planned Parenthood's information, she understood
t hat Pl anned Parenthood can be invited into the schools and they
strive for and are vetted for nedical accuracy.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY not ed the presence of Senator Stevens.

3:56: 05 PM

ESTHER SM TH, representing herself, testified in opposition to
SB 89. She stated that everyone knows that schools have an
obl i gati on to provi de educat i on to students t hat is
conprehensive, and age appropriate. She stressed that healthy
sexuality should be taught accurately throughout the state. It
is appropriate for schools to decide that certain mandates
super sede parental opinions.

3:57:35 PM

JULI E STROEMER, representing herself, testified in support of SB
89. She stated that she has enornmous concern about her parenta
rights in the school district. She said she is opposed to people
from Pl anned Parenthood tal king to students.

3:59: 23 PM
LYNN ESCOLA, representing herself, testified in opposition to SB
89, as anended. She said that the bill is an attenpt to destroy

Pl anned Parent hood, which is the best provider of sex education.
She opined that Al aska's young people are not being well-served
in SB 89.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 9- April 9, 2015



4:01: 05 PM

KAI TLYN ROBERTS, representing herself, testified in opposition
to SB 89. She cited the high rates of STI's and teen pregnancy
in Alaska and the need for education in order to |ower those
rates. She shared a personal story about her own experience in a
sex education class that did not negatively affect her famly's
val ues.

4. 02: 34 PM

AMM E TREMBLAY, representing herself, testified in opposition to
SB 89. She said she is a supporter of conprehensive sex
education. SB 89 creates barriers to conprehensive, engaging,
and science-based health education and conmmunity organizations
that provide it. Students need sex education that addresses
soci al responsibly and the science of reproductive health.

4:03:46 PM

JENNI FER WOCLY, representing herself, testified in opposition to
SB 89. She comented on the high rate of STl's and sexual
assaul t. She said her background includes sexual heal t h
education and her future career is in nedicine. She sees the
di rect connection between education and health. She spoke of the
children who do not have involved parents and nmay not access the
information they need. She stressed the inportance of nedically
accurate, age-appropriate education about their bodies and
rel ati onshi ps. She asked that the committee not force parents to
opt in.

4:04: 47 PM
JUDY M LLER, representing herself, testified in opposition to SB
89. She opined that the bill is damaging to student's gaining

access to vetted, objective, nedically accurate sex education
information, as provided by Planned Parenthood. An opt-out
provisions for parents already exists, but the bill is requiring
an opt-in provision. She thought Section 2 was especially
confusing regarding opting in for any test or survey and would
be i nmpossi bl e to manage.

4. 06: 25 PM

JOHN  LEVY, representing hinself, Board Menber, Pl anned
Parent hood, testified in opposition to SB 89, especially
Amendnent 2. He recalled how i nportant sex education was for his
children. He noted msinformation his children's friends had
about sexual relations, pregnancy, and disease. He pointed out
that Pl anned Parenthood has devel oped an accurate, broad, and
excellent information program for teaching responsibility to
kids of many ages. It is up to the |ocal school district whether

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -10- April 9, 2015



or not to include these prograns. Sex education reduces STD s,
and teen pregnancies, and del ays intercourse.

4:08: 05 PM

THEU A PETERSON, representing herself, testified in opposition
to SB 89. She said as a student at the University of Al aska-
Anchorage she has found that many of her peers do not know about
sexual health or where to go for help. She hoped that a
conprehensive sex education program would Ilower the high
statistics regarding STI's and sexual assault in Al aska.

4:09:13 PM

M CHELLE DAM., Curriculum Coordinator, Fairbanks North Star
Borough School District, testified in opposition to SB 89. She
stated that the district's opt-out process works and is nore
realistic than an opt-in policy. The district has devel oped
brochures and docunents for internal and external research
guidelines and are found on the website. This |legislation
inplies that districts are not currently protecting student data
and takes the decision about surveys and questionnaires away
fromlocal control

SENATOR GARDNER asked if there would be a fiscal inpact of an
opt-in policy.

M5. DAML said it would require many nore hours to track students
for each activity.

SENATOR GARDNER asked what happens to the kids who opt out.

M5. DAML said parents can Kkeep the student hone or nake
arrangenments within school with another teacher or adult in the
bui | di ng.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if students need a permssion slip for
field trips.

M5. DAM. said field trips require perm ssion slips and rel evance
to academ c | essons.

SENATOR HUGGE NS concl uded that they opt in for the field trip

M5. DAM. said yes, but if the trip is related to the curricul um
permssion slips are not required, but it is good practice to
have them

4:13: 30 PM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -11- April 9, 2015



LI NDA FILE, representing herself, testified in opposition to SB
89. She said she has been a volunteer for Planned Parenthood and
stated that Alaska is in extrene crisis concerning STl's and
sexual assault. Quality reproductive health information 1is
desperately needed by Alaska's youth and parents. She said the
amendnent di sall ows and denoni zes Pl anned Parenthood as abortion
services providers. This betrays a serious lack of know edge
about the full range of reproductive health education and care
provided through Planned Parenthood. As public policy, it is
m sl eadi ng and m si nfornmed and deneani ng to wonen.

4:15: 30 PM

PATSY BEHNER, representing herself, testified in opposition to
SB 89. She spoke as a fornmer teacher who believes that teens
want to be responsible and look to the institutions in their
lives, such as school, famly, and Planned Parenthood for
essential information. She stressed the need for quality
information for students and the consequences w thout it. She
spoke highly of Pl anned Parent hood educati on.

4:16:44 PM

CHANDA FI LE, representing herself, testified in opposition to SB
89. She said she is a college student and has volunteered for
Pl anned Parenthood and knows of its positive inpacts. She said
t eens deserve to have accurate information about sex education.

PETE HOEPFNER, Cordova School Board, Cordova School District,
testified in opposition to SB 89. He voiced concerns about the
validity of test scores should many students be allowed to opt
out of taking them School districts have been asked to be
accountabl e and teacher evaluations now include 50 percent of
their evaluation based on student growh. Testing scores help
address areas where student education is |acking.

SENATOR GARDNER asked about the cost of tinme and effort to
gat her necessary signatures for test taking.

MR. HOEPFNER spoke as a parent about the difficulty of keeping
track of papers from school. The data the school receives for
the Youth Risk Survey is not enough to be relevant. He opined
that tests provide valuable information the schools need to
have.

4:20:10 PM

SENATOR STEVENS voi ced concern about opting out of testing and
how it affects the child who is not allowed to take college or
vocational training tests.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -12- April 9, 2015



MR. HOEPFNER had a concern about the nore involved parents
opting out and that higher achieving student don't take the
tests. That sets the schools up for failure. Also, students
won't be prepared for testing in college.

4:22:40 PM

KATE FINN, representing herself, testified in opposition to SB
89. She said she was a sexual assault nurse exam ner and she
strongly opposes the bill as it is currently witten. The bill
is not just about sex education, but should be a safety net for
kids. Kids should learn in school how to recognize predatory
behavior. She stressed that kids need the information provided
by sex education. She suggested just allowing parents to opt
out .

4:24:04 PM

AMY BOLLENBACH, representing herself, testified in opposition to
SB 89. She said she agrees wth the previous speakers in
opposition to the bill. She shared her experience as a teacher
of human sexuality and stressed the need for the information.

4:25:25 PM

G NA CARPENTER, representing herself, testified in opposition to
SB 89. She said she is a registered nurse who has worked in the
area of sex education for over 30 years. She found Planned
Parent hood very supportive of abstinence and birth control
met hods and not pushing abortion. They are trained and good
educators. She concluded that girls with access to sex education
have | ower pregnancies.

4:26:52 PM

JOAN DI AMOND, representing herself, testified in opposition to
SB 89. She spoke as a fornmer public health nurse about the sex
education she provided in schools. She stressed the need for
accurate information for students.

4:28:14 PM

ROBIN SMTH, representing herself, testified in opposition to SB
89. She said parental support for school -based sex education is
overwhel m ngly positive as i nformation t hat suppl enment s
conversations at hone. Pl anned Parenthood helps fill an
inmportant gap left by the state's inaction of ensuring students
have access to this inportant information. She spoke of a
Pl anned Parent workshop for parents, which encourages parents to
pass on their values to their children

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -13- April 9, 2015



4:30: 15 PM
JULIE BAIRD, representing herself, testified in support of SB
89. She said she believes in protecting parental rights and in
sexual education and is teaching her children about it. She
pointed out that there are many prograns available for sex
educati on.

4:32: 06 PM

LI SA EGAN LAGERQUI ST, representing herself, testified in
opposition to SB 89. She understood that Anendnent 2 would
prevent Pl anned Par ent hood from providing mat eri al or
instruction on sexually transmtted diseases and sexuality in
public schools. She spoke of an excellent Planned Parenthood
wor kshop on sexuality for parents. She concluded that she wants
to have the programin her kids' school for other parents.

4:33: 34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  LAURA  REI NBOLD, Al aska State Legislature,
testified in support of SB 89. She said parental involvenent is
the key to student success. She said parents should be able to
opt out of progranms |ike Planned Parenthood. She spoke in favor
of parental rights.

4:35:09 PM

M KE HANLEY, Comm ssioner, Departnent of Health and Soci al
Services (DHSS), testified on SB 89. He said the opt-out
| anguage is problematic for school districts because they are
required to provide state assessnents and it puts the $96.7
million in Title funds at risk. It forces districts to nake a
choi ce between conplying with state law or with federal |aw He
said he has talked to the Assistant Secretary of Education, who
made it clear districts would be out of conpliance under SB 89.
He said currently the state has the opportunity to have the data
that wll show how schools are doing. It provides personal data
to parents and to students and provides group data to schools.
Losing that data, especially in small comunities, mght nake
the data invalid.

4:38: 57 PM

SENATOR STEVENS voiced concern about the |anguage that allows
parents to opt out of taking standards-based assessnents, tests
required by the state. He asked what happens to those kids who
don't take those tests. They would not be able to get into
college or into a training program Also, the departnment would
not know how Al aska's students are doi ng.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -14- April 9, 2015



COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said standards-based tests are not high
stakes tests and will have no inpact on grades, or enploynent,
but they do provide information to students and parents about
how districts are doing. He used the exanple of the Perfornmance
Scholarship to make his point. He provided an exanple of
students that could not score well on SAT, ACT, or WrkKeys
tests in several districts, leading to an adjustment of the
curriculum He said he is not afraid of accountability and | ooks
forward to making inforned decisions, but does not want to |ose
the data fromtest results.

4:41: 34 PM

SENATOR GARDNER said as a parent of three kids in public
school s, she was very involved and nade it her business to know
how things were going and to look at the work her kids were
doing. She said she felt enpowered to opt her kids out of
prograns and situations. She asked if parents can still do that
Now.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said yes; parents currently have the right
to opt out. He described his experience as an educator.

4:43: 17 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if parents have inherent parental rights.

COW SSI ONER HANLEY agr eed.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY said there should be no issue with having that
provision in SB 89.

COWM SSI ONER HANELY said there is a difference: By codifying it

in SB 89 the bill states that "basically school districts are
going to encourage the "opt out,'" which is problemtic.
CHAI R DUNLEAVY nmaintained that the bill does not encourage

school districts, it states that parents have the right.

COWMWM SSI ONER  HANLEY countered that he interprets "shal

i npl enent the policy to allow parents to opt out" as opting out,
as opposed to current state and federal |aw where the state has
the responsibility to assess all students so that there is an
under st andi ng of how school s are doi ng.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if the issue is the assessnent part.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said that is what he is addressing. He said
he does not have an issue with the other opt-out topics.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 15- April 9, 2015



4:45: 16 PM
SENATOR GARDNER read in Section 1, "a local school board shall

in consul tation W th parents, t eachers, and school
adm nistrators, adopt policies to pronote the involvenent of
parents in the school district's education program" She

mai ntai ned that schools are always trying to involve parents.
She asked if there currently are regulations or statutes that
encourage and require districts and schools to get parent
i nvol venent.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY replied that one of the teacher standards is
the engagenent of parents. He said is it absolutely a Best
Practice to engage parents.

SENATOR GARDNER noted that she and the commissioner had a
conversation about the attendance requirement with the existing
statute being a tool to let schools take a child off the rolls
if they have unexcused absences for a long period where the
school believes a famly has noved.

COWM SSI ONER  HANLEY clarified that the |anguage speaks to
wi t hdrawi ng a student after 10 absences. It is not designed for
a student who is sick or on vacation, nor to punish a student.
The purpose was to ensure that districts did not have students
who were not attending on their rolls during the October funding
count.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY agr eed.

4:48: 24 PM

SENATOR G ESSEL understood that opting out of standards-based
assessnents was deleted, as was withdrawing from a performance
st andar d.

M5. MARCUM clarified that only opting out of performance
st andards has been renoved.

SENATOR STEVENS asked where that was done.
M5. MARCUM said page 1, line 12. She continued to say on page 2,
lines 12 and 13, it refers to the content the parent is allowed

to review, not the test or assessnent.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY stated the standardi zed test cannot be opened and
revi ened.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -16- April 9, 2015



SENATOR G ESSEL said parents are not given the option of opting
out of performance standards.

COW SSI ONER HANLEY agr eed.

SENATOR G ESSEL referred to page 1, lines 9 and 10, where it
allows a parent to withdraw his or her child from a standards-
based assessnent. She noted I|eading questions and values

contained in those tests. She asked whether the testing has an
i npact on jobs or college applications.

COWMM SSI ONER HANLEY replied that they are not hi gh-stake tests.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if the national tests provide the sane
data as the SAT, ACT, and WrkKeys.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY replied that they do. They provide data
based on performance standards for conparison to other students
around the state. He explained that ACE and SAT all ow conpari son
wi th students around the country, a |arger benchmark.

4:53: 32 PM
SENATOR G ESSEL concl uded that the standards-based test may or
may not be needed to determine if a school 1is achieving

excel | ence.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY clarified that there are honme school students

exchange students, and private school students who go to
college. He said they don't need to take college entry tests. He
said tests are tools that help the practitioners. He said
parents have rights. He questioned what the purpose of schools
is. The bill states that parents have inherent rights. He
questioned if it is federal law telling the state what to do.
Parents are questioning what the tests do. It has changed from a
state focus to a federal focus.

4:57:44 PM
He reiterated the role of parents and their right to decide what
tests their kids should take. The bill illustrates that parents

have parental rights and abortion providers do not belong in
schools. He questioned the role of the federal government in
schools and if there is school choice.

5:03: 09 PM

SENATOR HUGGE NS supported Chair Dunleavy's conmments. He voiced
concern about the governnent versus parents. He stressed
parents' rights.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -17- April 9, 2015



CHAI R DUNLEAVY thanked Conm ssioner Hanley. He closed public
testi nony.

5:07:36 PM
SENATOR GARDNER said she has three amendnents. She noved
conceptual Anendnent 4.

AVENDMVENT 4

On page 1, beginning on line 12, to say "allowing a
parent to object and wthdraw their child from an
activity, class, performance standard, or program?”

CHAIR DUNLEAVY noted the bill would be heard in another
comm ttee.

SENATOR GARDNER said she does not sit on that conmmttee. She
continued to explain that she proposes to renove the |anguage
"because of concern regarding” wthout |isting the concerns
because there are a nunber of reasons why a parent would want to
wi thdraw a chil d.

SENATOR HUGGE NS objected. He suggested saying "at parenta
di scretion.” He wanted to keep the nmenu of reasons in the bill.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked Senator Gardner to repeat the amendnent.

SENATOR GARDNER repeated the anendnent. She did not want to see
an itemzed |ist because if a parent's reason was not |isted
they could not renove their child.

A roll call vote was taken. Senators Gardner voted in favor of
conceptual Amendnent 4 and Senators Huggins, Gessel, and
Dunl eavy voted against it. Therefore, Anendnent 4 failed by a
1:3 vote

SENATOR GARDNER noved conceptual Anmendnent 5. She said on page
2, line 14, it says "ensuring that when a child is absent from
an activity, class, performance standard, program or standards-
based assessnent or test required by the departnent under this
section, the absence is not considered an unlawful absence."” She
said she is concerned about kids that |eave school w thout the
school knowi ng where they are. She suggested that there be a
trigger that the absence is the parent's choice. The parent has
to let the school know what they are doing.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 18- April 9, 2015



CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked for the wording of the conceptua
amendment .

AMENDMVENT 5

SENATOR GARDNER said "ensuring that when a parent
removes a child from an activity, class, performance
standard, program or standards-based assessnent or
test, if the parent notifies the school, the absence
is not considered unlawful."™ There is a problem with
truancy in sone places and the school does not know
the difference unless notified by the parent.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY obj ected for discussion.
SENATOR HUGA NS asked for the amendnent to be restated.

SENATOR GARDNER said she sinply wants a way for the school to
make a distinction between a parent choice to renove a child and
an absence a parent may or may not know about.

SENATOR G ESSEL thought that it was already established under
the title - "a parent's right to direct the education.”

5:13: 35 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY comented that if a child is AWL it is
unexcused.

SENATOR GARDNER questi oned how t he school woul d know.

5:14:11 PM

M5. MARCUM responded that there are two sections that apply. On
page 2, line 16, "under AS 14.30.020" was added by Legislative
Legal to indicate that it only includes the absences and
wi t hdrawal s covered under the section. Also, on page 1, lines 7
and 8, it says it is up to the school district to develop the
policies for this.

5:15:16 PM

SENATOR GARDNER opi ned that (6) does not give the school any way
to know that when a child is mssing it is due to the parent's
i ntent.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if the intent is notification.

SENATOR GARDNER said she wants the school to be able to know
when a child is absent due to the parent's action.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -19- April 9, 2015



SENATOR HUGE NS offered to carry the anmendnent to the next
commttee of referral.

SENATOR GARDNER agreed; she wi t hdrew Amendnent 5.

5:17: 01 PM

SENATOR GARDNER noved the committee recede from the passage of
Amendnent 2, |abeled 29-LS0735\P.2, on the grounds that it is
unconstitutional. She noted there is a |legal opinion on it.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY countered that the legal opinion says it "raises
equal protection and nmay inplicate First Anmendnment rights". He
said many |l egal opinions are witten this way, because it is not
certain until tested by a | egal case.

SENATOR GARDNER declined to proceed with her notion to recede
fromthe passage of Anendnent 2.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY noted a zero fiscal note.

5:18: 24 PM

SENATOR HUGGE NS noved to report CS for SB 89, version P as
anended, from commttee wth individual reconmendations and
attached fiscal note(s).

CHAI R DUNLEAVY announced that wi thout objection, CSSB 89(EDC) is
reported fromthe Senate Education Standing Commttee.

CHAIR DUNLEAVY noted that he supports Senator Huggins in
carrying conceptual Amendnent 5 to the next commttee of
referral and wi shes to discuss conceptual Amendnment 4 further
wi th Senator Gardner and possibly include that as well.

5:19: 06 PM
At ease

5:20:51 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY noted that SB 37 would be heard at the next
Educati on Comittee neeti ng.

5:21:31 PM

There being nothing further to cone before the conmttee, Chair
Dunl eavy adjourned the Senate Education Standing Committee at
5:21 p.m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 20- April 9, 2015



